
Oregon State Library Board  
Agenda Packet 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
April 20, 2016  
Riverhouse Convention Center 
3075 U.S. 97 Business 
Bend, OR





 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 

Agenda and Meeting Minutes    1 
 

 
Reports of the State Librarian and Staff   14 
 
 
Adoption of Board Bylaws       19 
 
 
2017-2019 Budget Request      24 
 
 
Review of Board Statutory Responsibilities  27 
 
 
Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council  
Recommendations      32 
 
 
Miscellaneous       44 
 
 
Correspondence        49 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Agenda and Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



 
 
 
 
 
Contact:  MaryKay Dahlgreen 
  State Librarian 
  503-378-4367 
 
 
 
April 6, 2016 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
 
The Oregon State Library Board will meet at the Riverhouse Convention Center in Bend, 
OR on Wednesday, April 20, 2016 from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. Aletha Bonebrake of 
Baker City will chair the meeting.  
 
At the meeting on April 20th, the board will review and vote on bylaws. They will discuss 
the 2017-2019 budget request process and hear a report from the State Librarian on 
2016-2017 operational planning. An open forum is scheduled for 11:30 a.m. Anyone 
may address the board on any topic at the open forum. 
 
Sign language interpretation will be provided for the public if requested prior to 48 
hours before the meeting; notice prior to 72 hours before the meeting is preferred.  
Handouts of meeting materials may also be requested in alternate formats prior to 72 
hours before the meeting. Requests may be made to Jessica Rondema at 503-378-
2464. 
 

-30- 

  Kate Brown, Governor 
 

State Library 
250 Winter St. NE 

Salem, OR 97301-3950 
(503) 378-4243 

Fax (503) 588-7119 
 

 

 

2



  
OREGON STATE LIBRARY BOARD MEETING 

April 20, 2016 
Riverhouse Convention Center 

Bend, OR 
Aletha Bonebrake, Chair 

 
Agenda 

 
 
9:00 a.m. Approval of the Minutes of the January 8, 2016 Meeting (p. 4) Bonebrake 
 
9:05 Introductions All 
 
9:30 Reports of Board Chair and Members Bonebrake 
 
10:00 Report of the State Librarian (p. 14) Dahlgreen 
 
11:30 Open Forum** Bonebrake 
 
Noon  Lunch 
   
1:00 New Business:  
 Adoption of Board Bylaws (p. 19) Malkin 
 2017-2019 Budget Request (p. 24) Dahlgreen 
 Review of Board Statutory Responsibilities (p. 27) Bonebrake 
 Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council Recommendations (p. 32) Dahlgreen 
   
3:00 Adjournment Chair  
 

 

** Any person may address the Oregon State Library Board at this meeting on any topic.   

 

 

 

 
NOTE:  The times of all agenda items are approximate and subject to change. 

 
 

 

3



Oregon State Library Board Meeting 
January 8, 2016 

Oregon State Library, Salem 

Board members present: Ebonee Bell, Aletha Bonebrake, Sam Hall, Leslie Hicks, Dacia Johnson, 
Ann Malkin, Jennie Tucker. Absent: Salam Noor. 

Guests present: None. 

Staff present: MaryKay Dahlgreen, Margie Harrison, Shawn Range, Susan Westin, Kate Anderson, 
Brad Fanning, Tamara Ottum, Claire Bolyard, Kate McGann, Elke Bruton, Andrea Clarkson, Joel 
Henderson, Meagan Button, Erich Peppler, Crystal Grimes.    

Recorder: Jessica Rondema. 

Chair Aletha Bonebrake called the meeting to order at 9:07 a.m. A few members were late due to 
traffic related to an accident on the bridge. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

On the fourth page of the minutes from the October 16, 2015, board meeting, an instance of “p.m.” 
needs to be changed to “a.m.” 

Malkin moved to approve the minutes from the October 16, 2015, board meeting as corrected. 
Tucker seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

INTRODUCTIONS 

The board is now officially called the State Library Board (instead of the State Library Board of 
Trustees) and consists of nine members. We currently have eight members and one vacancy.  

New staff were introduced to the board: Tamara Ottum as the Virtual Reference Librarian 
(Answerland) in Library Support and Development, Brad Fanning as the Customer Support Specialist 
in Operations (IT), and Kate Anderson as the Circulation Technician in the Talking Book and Braille 
Library. Rachel Kenny (Digitization Specialist in Government Information and Library Services) was 
not present.  

OFFICER ELECTION 

Bell moved to re-elect the current officers (Aletha Bonebrake as Chair, and Ann Malkin as Vice-
Chair) until the election in July 2016. Tucker seconded the motion and the two officers accepted. The 
motion passed unanimously.  

PLANNING FOR BOARD MEETINGS IN 2016 

The board established the following schedule for 2016 meetings:  

• Wednesday, April 20th in Bend to coincide with the 2016 OLA Conference 
• Friday, June 10th at the Oregon State Library in Salem 
• Thursday and Friday, August 11th and 12th at the Oregon State Library in Salem 
• Friday, October 14th at the Independence Public Library in Independence  

 

 

4



Dahlgreen reviewed the significant board activities for the upcoming year.  

The 2016 Oregon Library Association Conference will be held from April 20th – 22nd in Bend. We 
will start the board meeting in the morning of April 20th, so board and staff members from out of town 
will arrive the night before. The idea was raised to publicize that the board will be there.   

Shawn Range will be putting together the budget committee, which has traditionally consisted of a 
few members of the board, the managers, and a few staff members. It will be beneficial for the board 
budget committee to meet in February and March, and then again in April, after our staff in-service 
day, in order to integrate the budget with the operational plan. The board will need to review and 
discuss the budget at the June meeting, and possibly hold a phone meeting in July, before the budget 
needs to be submitted in early August. The board members on the budget committee have been 
selected: Aletha Bonebrake, Ann Malkin, Dacia Johnson (by phone), and Jennie Tucker (by phone).  

Also in June, the board will be reviewing LSTA grants and approving the permanent administrative 
rules.   

At the August meeting, the board will review the strategic plan. We are planning for a two-day 
meeting (August 11th and 12th) because the board may decide to use one of these days as a retreat.    

At the October board meeting, the board will review Ready to Read grants. This meeting will be held 
in Independence, so Hicks will contact the director to discuss this. Dahlgreen and Rondema will 
follow up. 

The bylaws committee will consist of Ann Malkin and Leslie Hicks, who will work with Rondema. 
The updated bylaws will come to the April meeting, so they need to be sent to the board by March 
20th.  

In June, Sam Hall and Ebonee Bell will be leaving the board. These two positions, in addition to the 
vacancy left by Susan Hathaway-Marxer, will be filled with two state agency staff members and an 
academic librarian. We need to work on getting a librarian on the board from Eastern Oregon. 

OPEN FORUM 

The open forum began at 10:45 a.m. No one was present to comment at the open forum.  

NEW BUSINESS 

Post-Transaction Review of Agency Head Financial Transactions  

The Oregon Accounting Manual requires state agencies to have the Vice-Chair of the board sign off 
on the financial transactions of the agency head. Once a year, the Vice-Chair brings these transactions 
to the board to give them the opportunity to review them and see that the Vice-Chair has been 
monitoring them. The Vice-Chair reported that the transactions look normal.  

Tucker moved to accept the post-transaction review of agency head financial transactions as 
presented by Malkin. Hall seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

Approval of Board Advisory Councils  

Dahlgreen described the process that we went through to come up with the nominations to the three 
board advisory councils: Government Information and Library Services Advisory Council, the 
Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council, and the Talking Book and Braille Library 
Advisory Council. Staff in each division put out a call for council members and received good 

5



responses. The staff pays attention to geographic diversity, which agency the interested people 
represent, and how much experience they have with their agency as well as with the State Library.  

The Government Information and Library Services Advisory Council consists of up to nine members 
who serve two-year terms. The Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council has 13 
members who serve three-year terms. The Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council has 
nine members who serve four-year terms.  

Tucker moved to approve the recommended appointments to the board advisory councils. Bell 
seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

Adoption of Temporary Administrative Rules  

The manner in which HB 3523 was written did not allow last year’s board to not pass the new 
administrative rules. Therefore, temporary rules need to be passed in order to have enough time to go 
through the process of adopting permanent administrative rules.  

We have eliminated information from the administrative rules that was outdated, such as charging 
agencies for database searches. We have also created two workgroups to work on the administrative 
rules – one dealing with acquiring and reviewing databases and subscription licenses for state 
government, and the other dealing with certification of state agency libraries.  These groups will meet 
a few more times to be sure that the approach we are taking is effective and efficient. The temporary 
rules need to align with the permanent rules.  

The next step is for us to announce that we are proposing these permanent rules in the Oregon 
Bulletin from the Secretary of State’s office. We will then have a public hearing, most likely at the 
board’s June meeting. By then, permanent rules would have been distributed and people will have the 
opportunity to comment in writing as well as in person at the meeting.   

Neither the certification of state agency libraries nor the database subscriptions process has an impact 
on the public. However, there may be feedback from state agencies regarding the subscriptions 
process, and a concern that they will no longer have the flexibility and control they have had in the 
past. The purpose of this rule is to be more efficient and reduce or eliminate duplication. There are 
also a few agency libraries that have concerns about the library certification process. Again, it is 
important to emphasize that the purpose of this legislation is to reduce duplication.  

Once these temporary rules are approved, the next step is to work with subscriptions liaisons within 
agencies to identify which subscriptions they currently possess. This will allow us to clarify the 
unknowns.  

Dahlgreen has met with the Reference Coordinating Council, consisting of herself, the State 
Archivist, and the State of Oregon Law Librarian. Those two agencies are not affected by these new 
rules, but the legal and records databases need to be addressed by their organizations. They came to 
the agreement that the State Library will contact them as needed to discuss the databases that relate to 
their fields.  

Malkin moved to adopt the temporary administrative rules in Chapter 543. Tucker seconded. 
The motion passed unanimously.  

Bonebrake will sign the rules, and they will be in effect beginning Monday, January 11, 2016. 
Dahlgreen acknowledged the hard work of Harrison and Westin on these temporary rules.  

 

6



REPORTS OF BOARD CHAIR AND MEMBERS  

Executive Committee Report  

The Executive Committee met on December 1, 2015. They heard the State Librarian’s update and 
developed the agenda for today’s meeting.  

Other Board Reports  

Bonebrake reported that the executive director of Libraries of Eastern Oregon (LEO), who has been 
there since the late nineties, has resigned. The Libraries of Eastern Oregon board chair Marsha 
Richmond and the vice chair, Marie Baldo, have taken over the duties and are rolling out the Art 
Place America project. The scheduling coordinator is located in Hood River, and will locate local art 
opportunities. The Baker County Public Library has also started “maker Fridays,” put on by library 
staff members who have volunteered. This is very popular with adults.  

Tucker has been visiting each library in Union County to attend their advisory board meetings, 
reintroducing herself and explaining that she can communicate their concerns to the State Library 
Board. She has also been introducing herself as a board member to home health and hospice agencies 
and assisted living facilities to promote the services of the Talking Book and Braille Library.  

Hicks reported that the Independence Library is very active in the community. ORSLA (the Oregon 
chapter of the Special Libraries Association) just approved a merger with the northwest chapter, based 
in Seattle. Hicks was also recently promoted to the Exeter Materials Center Manager at Nike. She is 
able to hire three more librarians and has convinced other groups at Nike to hire librarians. In 
December, Hicks was able to schedule the Oregon Poet Laureate Peter Sears for a talk at the Blue 
Ribbon Studio, a new makerspace for designers.  

Hall reported that Salem has a new city manager and new library administrator at Salem Public 
Library, resulting in some resorting of roles and priorities. Hall has been learning more about 
community reads programs in other communities, because the Salem Public Library Foundation is 
planning to hold such a program in order to attract people in Salem who do not use the library.  

Malkin reported that James McBride (author of the Good Lord Bird) did an incredible performance 
with his band. Elizabeth Gilbert was the next author to present, and this show was sold out. The 
presentation included a writing workshop on creativity, with meditation and yoga. Each new author 
brings in a diverse demographic. The Deschutes Public Library’s community reads program is called 
the Novel Idea. They had a very successful unveiling event, announcing Euphoria, by Lily King, as 
the next community reads book. The library has programming that supports the visit of each author. 
The books are chosen by a special committee which reads many books before making the selection. 
The Deschutes Public Library Board is also working on a strategic plan to look at how to 
accommodate growth in the community.  

Bell reported that Multnomah County Library is going to have a crisis worker for the library system, 
following a similar model as a social worker to assist the homeless and other people in need in the 
community. The Everybody Reads book is The Book of Unknown Americans, by Cristina Henriquez. 
The teen author lecture will feature Gene Yang, who was just named Children’s Ambassador to 
Literature. Of the incarcerated youth that Bell works with, those who have permission to leave its 
premises will be able to attend the lecture. Bell also applied and received a grant for the Great Stories 
Club and traveled to Chicago. She was able to meet with other librarians who serve incarcerated or at-
risk youth. She will now be implementing this grant.  

7



Johnson gave information about the Oregon Commission for the Blind, which is based in Portland. 
Most of the people they serve were sighted at some point in their lives and have lost vision. The 
commission has the only residential training center in Oregon for people who are blind, which offers 
in-house rehabilitation teaching experts who provide training on blindness-related skills such as cane 
travel, braille instruction, meal preparation, and technology. They also have itinerate teaching staff in 
communities throughout the state, who provide services largely in clients’ homes.  

The other main activity of the Oregon Commission for the Blind is independent living, which helps 
people who do not have the goal of returning to work maintain their independence and active 
community lives after vision loss. About 80% of those the commission serves are over age 75. The 
Oregon Commission for the Blind has a total budget of about 16 million biennially, 80% of which 
comes from the federal government. The remainder of the budget is from state contribution or other 
funds that are required to match the state grants. They have 57 full time equivalent staff. There is a 
field office in Salem. Each field office has teaching experts and rehabilitation counselors. The Oregon 
Commission for the Blind reports to a seven-member commission board who are governor appointed 
and senate approved. 

REPORTS OF THE STATE LIBRARIAN  

Activities Since the Last Meeting 

Dahlgreen discussed the expenditures to date in the board packet. The managers are still working to 
develop a more user-friendly format for the budget reports. She also drew the board’s attention to an 
article about a summer reading sweepstakes, sponsored by the Oregon College Savings Plan, in 
partnership with the Oregon State Library and the Oregon Library Association.  

Dahlgreen mentioned two severe losses to the library community in the last several weeks. Debbie 
Alvarez was a phenomenal school librarian, who started Battle of the Books. Malkin helped 
Dahlgreen craft a letter which was sent to the Alvarez family. Dahlgreen read the letter to the board 
(see Attachment 1). Dahlgreen also attended the memorial service which was overflowing with 
people.  

The second significant loss to the library community was the passing of George Bell. He was a 
member of the State Library Board from 1988 until 1995, serving as chair twice during his terms. He 
was also a very political man, working as Assistant Secretary of State. There was a very nice obituary 
in the Statesman Journal. He also had a blog, Polwatch. A celebration of life will be held on January 
17th in Loucks Auditorium at the Salem Public Library. 

Dahlgreen had the opportunity to attend the Tribal State Government to Government Summit, which 
is held every year by the Governor and the Legislative Commission on Indian Services. This is related 
to Senate Bill 770 which stated that state agencies and tribal governments need to work together. 
Tribal leaders and Governor Brown were in attendance. Dahlgreen was able to reconnect with people 
she worked with in the past when they did the tribal archives, libraries, and museums program. This 
reenergized her hope to do more work with tribal libraries.  

Our 1937 elevator is going to be replaced, as it is malfunctioning frequently. DAS will be replacing 
the mechanisms but retaining the historic elevator car and doors. It will take about six weeks. We will 
need to create a plan to handle logistical issues, including determining how to get people around the 
building.  

Dahlgreen is a member of the Library Statistics Working Group, which is a committee of COSLA 
(Chief Officers of State Library Agencies) which works with the IMLS (Institute of Museum and 
Library Services) Research and Statistics Division as an advisory group. She attended the meeting of 

8



this group in Louisville, Kentucky. There is a lot of discussion about library statistics beyond 
circulation, and how to more effectively tell our story. This group would like to ask IMLS to fund a 
data summit to discuss current data gathering efforts. The Statistics Working Group looks at defining 
statistics to enable meaningful comparisons.  

Westin was also in Louisville, attending the State Data Coordinator’s meeting to give her a better 
understanding about the public library statistics that we collect from all the public libraries in the state 
for IMLS.  

Dahlgreen discussed the Horner Exchange program, named after a gentleman who donated money to 
allow for an exchange with Fujian Provincial Library in Fujian, China. Every three years, we send a 
group of librarians to Fujian, and they send a group to Oregon. This is the last year that we will have 
the money to participate in this exchange. In 2013, we transferred the responsibility and remaining 
funding for this program to the Oregon Library Association International Round Table. Unless we 
determine how to acquire funding, this may be the last exchange. Jim Scheppke, previous Oregon 
State Librarian, was very involved in this exchange. This year, Dahlgreen has been invited to join the 
delegation in China for the first week of the exchange in October. She will also be presenting a paper 
at the Fujian Provincial Library Conference on children’s library services in Oregon. Dahlgreen has 
sent an invitation to the Fujian Provincial Librarian, inviting four of their librarians to visit Oregon in 
May. The OLA International Relations Round Table handles the arrangements. Oregon itself also has 
a sister relationship with the Fujian Province. Dahlgreen would like to bring them to the Governor’s 
office during their visit.  

We are in the process of getting a new Digital Asset Management System to replace our home-built 
repository for our state documents. Government Services determined which system to purchase and 
made a recommendation to Dahlgreen. We will be working with LYRASIS using the product 
Islandora. It will be a one stop shop for users to be able to search, browse, and discover our electronic 
versions of government documents. It is also another great opportunity for us to partner with other 
state agency libraries.  

We are focusing on staff training over the next several months, as cultivating staff strengths is one of 
our strategic imperatives. In November and December, we held discussion groups around our 
Customer Service Standards, including tools and tricks to meet the expectations. We are following 
this up with conflict resolution training. We have hired a trainer from the Chemeketa Center for 
Business and Industry to hold two different sessions. A few staff members met with this trainer to 
develop specific scenarios that apply to the State Library.  

Our Professional Development Committee has requested that we have a staff in-service day, off-site. 
State Library services will be closed that day (April 1st). There will be outside speakers, interactive 
games, and discussions about operational planning and how we are moving forward.  

Dahlgreen will be starting her last class in her Certificate of Public Administration courses, which is 
on public organizations.  

There was a bill passed to require DAS to develop training for new board and commission members. 
There are two online courses and one in-person course. Dahlgreen and Rondema will look into this 
training to see how to incorporate this into our board orientation.  

Regarding the Talking Book and Braille Endowment Fund, we have now moved 70% of it into an 
intermediate fund which will give us a standard return on the interest rate. 

9



The next legislative session will occur in February. We have requested permission to provide a report 
on our strategic plan progress. Dahlgreen has meetings scheduled with a number of members on the 
General Government Subcommittee of the Joint Ways and Means Committee. 

Brad Fanning, Tamara Ottum, and Kate Anderson were introduced to the board this morning. Rachel 
Kenny is our other newest employee who is completing her MLS and doing a digitization internship 
with Willamette University.  

Andrea Blake has left Government Services and the Oregon State Library. She just completed her 
master’s in social work. Luis Navarrete has also left and will be working at the Department of 
Education. He had just finished getting his master’s in information technology.  

We currently have three vacant positions: a Program Analyst 1 (PA1/Volunteer Coordinator), a State 
Library Specialist 2 (SLS2), and an Information Services Specialist 4 (ISS4). The PA1 job will be 
posted in the next few weeks. We are looking to reconfigure the SLS2 position so we will not be 
hiring for this position right away. We are looking to add a communications component to the 
Executive Assistant position (Rondema’s position) to work with Dahlgreen and the staff on agency 
communications. This will require moving some the Executive Assistant’s tasks to the SLS2 position 
in Government Services. We are also looking into doing without a receptionist so Rondema can 
concentrate on the agency’s communications. We will wait to fill the ISS4 position, filling the PA1 
first. 

Dahlgreen will send the names of the trainers at the Chemeketa Center for Business and Industry to 
Johnson. They are independent contractors.  

Government Information and Library Services applied for a National Endowment for the Humanities 
small agency preservation grant. It was approximately $6,000 to transfer some of our preservation 
materials out of acidic enclosures and into archival materials. Dave Hegeman in Government Services 
submitted the grant and will oversee the grant activities.  

Dahlgreen mentioned that the Oregon State Library Jobline has become a blog, which is a very 
valuable resource. 

STAFF REPORTS  

Kate McGann of Government Information and Library Services gave a presentation on a new 
database that we have purchased for state government employees, called Safari. It contains over 
40,000 e-books, audio books, videos, conferences, and tutorials about technology, business, and 
professional development. We decided to purchase this product due to high patron demand.  

Elke Bruton of Talking and Braille Library gave a presentation on circulation and Digital on Demand. 
Talking Books is looking to switch from manually creating custom cartridges to the more effective 
model of creating patron-centric cartridges. The other option is duplication on demand, which is not 
much more efficient than manually creating the cartridges.  

Susan Westin, program manager of Library Support and Development Services and Talking Book and 
Braille Library, gave a presentation on the new one-step process for LSTA 2016 grants. These grants 
are due on April 15th. Prior to that date, Library Support staff and LSTA Advisory Council members 
can offer suggestions to those who are interested. After the April 15th due date, the grants are sent to 
the LSTA Advisory Council, then to the board at the June 10th meeting. The contracts will be written 
up quickly before the grants begin on July 1st.  

 

10



ACTION ITEMS 

• Hicks will contact the director of the Independence Public Library about hosting the October 
14th board meeting. Dahlgreen and Rondema will follow up.   

• Range and Dahlgreen will take the next steps to create the board budget committee. 
• Rondema will handle the bylaws committee. 
• Dahlgreen and Rondema will look into the DAS trainings that are offered to new board 

members to see how to incorporate this into our board orientation. 
• Dahlgreen will send the names of the trainers at the Chemeketa Center for Business and 

Industry to Johnson. 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



Attachment 1 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
The Family of Debbie Alvarez 
c/o Rachel Becker 
8676 SW Borders Street 
Tigard, OR 97223 
 
Dear Doug and Declan Alvarez, James and Sara Hipsher, and Rachel Becker, 
 
As Oregon State Librarian, I’d like to extend my sincere condolences on the passing of Debbie 
Alvarez.  I know you are mourning her as a wife, mother, daughter, and sister, but I wanted to let 
you know how much the Oregon library community mourns her loss as well. 
 
You know more than anyone the passion and excitement Debbie had for her chosen profession, 
but we in the library community saw the translation of that professional commitment into actions 
that rippled throughout the globe. 
 
Through her work as a librarian and instructional technology teacher for the Beaverton School 
District and the Bradbury School in Hong Kong, she directly touched the lives of thousands of 
students, promoting literacy and inspiring a love of reading that will stay with these youngsters 
for life. 
 
But her influence did not stop there.  As the myriad tributes to her on social media, blogs, and 
newspapers attest, she inspired and provided vital mentorship in her profession.  Through her 
blog “The Styling Librarian,” she selflessly shared her knowledge and passion and helped 
connect uncounted librarians, authors, and book lovers around the globe.  She shared books with 
us, allowed us to experience Hong Kong vicariously, and even shared her experience in her 
valiant fight with cancer. 
 
She collaborated with others to spearhead the creation of lasting programs that will continue her 
work into the future.  As the founding chairwoman of Oregon Battle of the Books, she helped 
create and coordinate a wonderful program that celebrates reading and young readers.  Her book 
lists and programs like the Golden Dragon Award program will continue to be resources for all 
of us searching for “just the right book.” 
 
Debbie modeled all of the professional attributes that we librarians aspire to, with a healthy dose 
of humor, wit, and wisdom.  She will be missed not only in Oregon but around the world.  She 
truly made a difference.  
 
With deepest sympathy, 
 
 
MaryKay Dahlgreen 
State Librarian 

  Kate Brown, Governor 
 

State Library 
250 Winter St. NE 

Salem, OR 97301-3950 
(503) 378-4367 

FAX (503) 585-8059 
 

 

 

12



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
State Library Board Executive Committee 
Aletha Bonebrake, Chair 
March 28, 2016 
3:00 p.m. 
 
Board members present by phone: Bonebrake, Malkin 
Recorder:  Dahlgreen 
 
Meeting was called to order at 3:05 p.m. 
 
Report of the State Librarian 

• The 2016 legislative session was completed at the end of February. Dahlgreen presented a 
State Library update to the General Government Subcommittee of the Joint Ways and Means 
Committee. HB 4050, which would create a task force to review summer learning 
opportunities around the state, was not passed out of committee.  

• State Library staff are involved in several training activities. Training topics are 
Communication/Conflict Resolution, Workplace Safety from the State Police, and an all staff 
in-service day. 

• Dahlgreen attended the Education Cluster meeting of the Legislative Commission on Indian 
Services in Lincoln City in early March. Attendees included state agency education staff and 
tribal government education staff. She will also be attending a training in May on treaty rights 
and working with tribal governments.  

• We are currently interviewing for the Volunteer Coordinator/Fund Development position and 
hope to have someone in place soon. This is the position from which Robin Speer retired in 
October.  

 
Approval of the Board Agenda for the April 20, 2016 Board meeting 
After discussion, the Executive Committee approved the agenda for the April 20, 2016 board meeting 
to be held in Bend, OR. 
 
Other Business 
There was discussion of the Executive Appointments Quarterly Survey that is due on March 31st. 
Dahlgreen will complete the survey based on discussion and submit to Executive Appointments 
Office. 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

 

  Kate Brown, Governor 
 

State Library 
250 Winter St. NE 

Salem, OR 97301-3950 
(503) 378-4243 

Fax (503) 588-7119 
 

 

13



 
 

Reports of the State Librarian and Staff 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

14



 
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY 
2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

 Report Period Month Ending April, 2016 
Target Percentage 33.33% 

Budget Object Title Budget 
Current Month 
Expenditures  

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget  
%Spent 

BTD 

Average Spend 
per month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining to 

Spend 
PERSONAL SERVICES  $  6,693,758   $         259,257   $      2,077,201   $      4,616,557  31.03%  $         259,650   $         288,535  
SERVICES & SUPPIES  $  4,147,742   $         292,513   $      1,522,192   $      2,625,550  36.70%  $         190,274   $         164,097  
SPECIAL PAYMENTS  $  3,984,711   $          14,833   $      1,294,766   $      2,689,945  32.49%  $         161,846   $         168,122  
TOTAL  $14,826,211   $         566,603   $      4,894,159   $      9,932,052  33.01%  $         611,770   $         620,753  

 
Tuesday, March 29, 2016 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 
 
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY 
2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

 
 

Report Period Month Ending April, 2016 

 
Target Percentage 33.33% 

Division 
Name Budget Object Title Budget 

Current 
Month 

Expenditures 

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget 
% Spent 

BTD 

Average Spent 
per Month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining to 

Spend 
Operations  PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,239,729   $       37,123   $     311,726   $     928,003  25.14%  $       38,966   $       58,000  

SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $     195,319   $         7,076   $       64,840   $     130,479  33.20%  $         8,105   $         8,155  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $         2,412   $                -   $                -   $         2,412  0.00%  $                -   $            151  

Total  $   1,437,460   $       44,199   $     376,565   $   1,060,895  26.20%  $       47,071   $       66,306  
Library 
Development 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,370,232   $       58,934   $     455,695   $     914,537  33.26%  $       56,962   $       57,159  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $   1,779,491   $     198,585   $     716,637   $   1,062,854  40.27%  $       89,580   $       66,428  
SPECIAL PAYMENTS  $   3,984,711   $       14,833   $   1,294,766   $   2,689,945  32.49%  $     161,846   $     168,122  
Total  $   7,134,434   $     272,353   $   2,467,099   $   4,667,335  34.58%  $     308,387   $     291,708  

Talking Book 
and Braille 
Services 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,109,975   $       42,768   $     338,616   $     771,359  30.51%  $       42,327   $       48,210  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $     567,024   $       11,471   $     152,428   $     414,596  26.88%  $       19,053   $       25,912  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $         9,046   $                -   $                -   $         9,046  0.00%  $                -   $            565  

Total  $   1,686,045   $       54,239   $     491,043   $   1,195,002  29.12%  $       61,380   $       74,688  
Government 
Research 
Services 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   2,973,822   $     120,431   $     971,164   $   2,002,658  32.66%  $     121,396   $     125,166  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $   1,583,437   $       75,381   $     588,287   $     995,150  37.15%  $       73,536   $       62,197  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $       11,013   $                -   $                -   $       11,013  0.00%  $                -   $            688  

Total  $   4,568,272   $     195,812   $   1,559,452   $   3,008,820  34.14%  $     194,931   $     188,051  
Total  $ 14,826,211   $     566,603 $   4,894,159   $   9,932,052 33.01%  $     611,770 $     620,753  

 
Tuesday, March 29, 2016 

 

 
 
 

16



 
 
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY 
2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

 
  

Report Period Month Ending April, 2016 

  
Target Percentage 33.33% 

Program 
Code 

Program 
Code Title Budget Object Title   

Current 
Month 

Expenditures 

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget 
% Spent 

BTD 

Average 
Spent per 
Month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining 
to spend 

1200 OSL 
BOARD 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $ 1,900   $             33   $           326   $        1,574  17.16%  $             41   $             98  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $22,360   $           405   $        6,761   $       15,599  30.24%  $           845   $           975  

Total  $24,260   $           437   $        7,088   $       17,173  29.21%  $           886   $        1,073  
Tuesday, March 29, 2016 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

17



 
OREGON STATE LIBRARY 

2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

  

 
Agency Title 

OREGON STATE 
LIBRARY 

OREGON 
STATE LIBRARY 

OREGON STATE 
LIBRARY 

 
Report Date 3/31/2015 3/29/2016 4/2015 to 4/2016 

Accounts Account Title Cash Balance Cash Balance 12 Month Change 
TBABS ENDOWMENT FUND 
INTEREST 

CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0300     $               23,840.69   $        22,813.51   $           (1,027.18) 

TBABS ENDOWMENT FUND 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0301  $          1,680,355.00   $      590,077.76   $    (1,090,277.24) 

Oregon Intermediate Term Pool (OITP) Treasury Investment Fund  $                          -     $   1,382,328.93   $      1,382,328.93  

LONG FUND - NON EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0302  $                 1,000.00   $          1,000.00   $                      -    

MOSES FUND - NON EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0303  $                 6,000.00   $          6,000.00   $                      -    

LONG FUND - EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0306  $                     36.13   $              41.69   $                   5.56  

MOSES FUND - EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0307  $                 8,173.81   $          7,784.35   $              (389.46) 

TBABS DONATION FUND 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0308  $             125,187.09   $      209,665.86   $          84,478.77  

DATABASE LICENSING RESERVE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0321  $               40,412.65   $        40,637.01   $               224.36  

TOTAL    $          1,885,005.37   $   2,260,349.11   $         375,343.74  

     Tuesday, March 29, 2016 
 

 
 
 

 
 

18



 
 

Adoption of Board Bylaws 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
Agenda Item  

Adoption of Board Bylaws 
 

Background and Summary 
HB 3523 eliminated the Oregon State Library Board of Trustees and created 
the State Library Board. New bylaws are required as a result of this. The 
attached draft was crafted by a board subcommittee and staff.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 
Oregon State Library Board Bylaws 
 Draft 2-26-2016 
 
OREGON STATE LIBRARY MISSION: 
 
The State Library provides leadership and resources to continue growing vibrant library 
services for Oregonians with print disabilities, the Legislature and state government, and 
all Oregonians through local libraries. 
 
I. STATE LIBRARY BOARD MEMBERS AND TERMS - See ORS 357.021. 

 
II. STATE LIBRARY BOARD AUTHORITY - See ORS 357.031. 
 
III. STATE LIBRARY BOARD DUTIES - See ORS 357.026. 
 
IV. OFFICERS – See also ORS 357.023. 
 
The officers shall be the Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be 
elected by the board for a term of one year and may be reelected. Terms of office begin on July 1 
of each year. The Vice-Chair shall serve in the absence of the Chair. The State Librarian shall be 
the Secretary. 
 
V. DUTIES OF THE OFFICERS – See also ORS 357.071 

 
The Chair shall call and preside at meetings, authorize calls for any special meetings, set meeting 
agendas, appoint committees, and carry out the duties generally pertaining to this office. The 
Chair shall be the board’s official representative unless otherwise provided by the board. When 
appropriate, the Chair may appoint members to represent the board at legislative and legal 
hearings, conferences, and other meetings. 
 
The Vice-Chair, in the event of the absence or incapacity of the Chair, or of a vacancy in that 
office, shall assume and perform the duties and functions of the Chair.  
 
The Secretary shall issue notice of all regular and special meetings, shall keep and distribute the 
minutes of the meetings of the board, and shall propose meeting agendas for the consideration of 
the Chair/Executive Committee. 
 
The Secretary has no vote on the board or on the Executive Committee. 
 
The Chair’s designee and the Secretary shall provide an orientation for new board members 
following appointment by the Governor. 
 

21



VI. STATE LIBRARY BOARD MEMBER DUTIES – See also ORS 357. 026. 
 

Duties of members of the State Library Board shall include the following: 
1. Attend meetings of the board, enter into discussion, and participate in decision-making 

on items coming before the board. 
2. Study and be familiar with reports and materials sent to board members prior to 

meetings. Keep informed on library laws, policies, trends, and services. 
3. Serve on committees when requested to do so by the Chair. 
4. Refer problems brought to the attention of the individual board member to the State 

Librarian for review, action, or submission to the board. 
5. Recognize that an individual board member has no authority to act for the State 

Library Board except at the request of the board. 
6. Review and vote on all amendments proposed to the bylaws of State Library Board 

Advisory Councils. 
 
VII.  NONATTENDANCE OF STATE LIBRARY BOARD MEMBER - See ORS 182.010. 
 
VIII. COMMITTEES 

 
1. Executive Committee – The Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary (State Librarian), as well 

as the most recent Past Chair, shall comprise the Executive Committee. The Executive 
Committee may meet at least three weeks prior to each board meeting to review the 
State Librarian’s report and to prepare for the upcoming board meeting, as deemed 
necessary by the Chair. The Executive Committee may also meet at other times or for 
other purposes as deemed necessary by the Chair, or as may be determined by majority 
vote of the board. 
 

2. Nominating Committee – A Nominating Committee consisting of three board members 
shall be appointed by the Chair two months prior to the last meeting of the fiscal year 
to present a slate of officers at the annual meeting. Additional nominations may be 
made from the floor. 
 

3. Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council – The board shall appoint a seven 
member Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council to provide counsel on 
issues relating to the Talking Book and Braille Library. The State Librarian shall 
suggest nominees for vacant positions on the Talking Book and Braille Library 
Advisory Council. Recommendations made by the Talking Book and Braille Library 
Advisory Council are advisory only, and are not binding on the board. 
 

4. Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) Advisory Council – The board shall 
appoint a 13 member LSTA Advisory Council to provide counsel on issues relating to 
the Library Services and Technology Act. The State Librarian shall suggest nominees 
for vacant positions on the LSTA Advisory Council. The board may also appoint 
additional LSTA Advisory Council members for special projects for a specified term 
not to exceed three years. Recommendations made by the LSTA Advisory Council are 
advisory only, and are not binding on the board. 
 

5. Government Information and Library Services Advisory Council – The board shall 
appoint a Government Information and Library Services Advisory Council of up to 
nine members to provide counsel on issues relating to Government Information and 
Library Services. Members will be employees of state agencies that pay an assessment 

22



to the State Library. The State Librarian shall suggest nominees for vacant positions on 
the Government Information and Library Services Advisory Council. 
Recommendations made by the Government Information and Library Services 
Advisory Council are advisory only, and are not binding on the board. 
 

IX. MEETINGS – See also ORS 357.023 
 

Meetings of the board shall be held in accordance with ORS 192.610-710 (Public Meetings). 
 
The board shall meet at least once every three months at a place, day, and hour determined by the 
board. The board may also meet at other times and places specified by the call of the Chair or of a 
majority of the members of the board.  
 
A majority of the members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. 
 
Meetings of the board may be held by telephone, and such shall have the same effect as a regular 
meeting of the board. 
 
X. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT BOARD MEETINGS 

 
Any member of the public may attend any regular board meeting except when the board declares 
itself to be in executive session. In addition, members of the public may address the board during 
the open forum session of any regular board meeting. The Chair shall allot a reasonable time for 
such a hearing and shall at his or her discretion also limit public comment. The board also may 
limit public comment by majority vote. 
 
XI. COMPENSATION OF BOARD MEMBERS – See ORS 292.495 and 292.210 to 292.250. 
 
XII. ROLES AND DUTIES OF THE STATE LIBRARIAN – See ORS 357.050 and 357.071. 
 
XIII. AMENDMENTS 

 
These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote at a regular meeting, provided notice of the 
proposed amendment and of the language has been given in the notice of the meeting. 
 
XIV. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
These bylaws shall be effective on and after April 20, 2016. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



 
 

2017-2019 Budget Request 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



 
Agenda Item  

2017-2019 Agency Request Budget 
 

Background and Summary 
The State Library Board is responsible for the creation and submission of an 
agency request budget to the Governor’s office by August 1, 2016. Attached 
is an overview of the process that will be discussed. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Department of Administrative Services > Financial programs > Budget process 
http://www.oregon.gov/das/Financial/pages/Budgetprocess.aspx 

Oregon's budget process 

Oregon’s budget is a tool to carry out the state’s law and policy decisions. It appropriates the 
state’s General Fund, allocates the state's Lottery Fund, and expends the state's Other Funds and 
Federal Funds. The budget covers two fiscal years (a biennium), meaning it runs from July 1 of an 
odd-numbered year to June 30 of the next odd-numbered year. For example, July 1, 2013 to June 
30, 2015 would be considered a biennium. 

The budget process has three major phases  

Agency Request Budget 

Agencies start the budget early in even-numbered years to develop their Agency Request Budget. 
This lays out agency finances and policies for consideration by the Governor. The Chief Financial 
Office (CFO) gives agencies guidelines to use in this process. Agencies send their budget request 
to the CFO by August 1 or September 1. 

Governor's Recommended Budget  

The Governor and the CFO review the budget requests. They use the Governor’s priorities, budget 
policies, and current law to make budget decisions. The Governor’s Recommended Budget 
document summarizes those decisions. It gives data on all the state’s revenues and expenditures.  
It also gives information on each agency’s budget. The Department of Revenue puts together a 
Tax Expenditure Report that is published at the same time. The Tax Expenditure Report outlines 
the various reductions available to residents for the income tax. The Governor presents the 
Recommended Budget to the Legislature when it meets at the start of the next calendar year (for 
example, January of 2017, during the 2015-17 biennium).  

Legislatively Adopted Budget  

Once the Governor's Recommended Budget is received, legislative committees review the 
proposed budget. They hold public hearings to request feedback from each agency and the public. 
Each budget bill has a Budget Report that presents the committee's recommendations. The 
Legislature votes on each budget bill. The budget bills that are enacted into law make up the 
Legislatively Adopted Budget. Agencies carry out, or execute, the budget over the two year 
budget period. 

The Emergency Board can make some changes to the budget between legislative sessions. Special 
sessions may also be called to deal with budget issues. The Legislatively Adopted Budget, and the 
changes to it after the Emergency Board reviews it, make up the Legislatively Approved Budget. 

26

http://www.oregon.gov/das/Pages/index.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/das/Financial/Pages/Index.aspx


 
 

Review of Board Statutory Responsibilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27



 
Agenda Item  

Review of board statutory responsibilities 
 

Background and Summary 
Changes in enabling legislation for the State Library were effective January 1, 
2016. The board will discuss those responsibilities. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



Oregon Revised Statutes 357.026 Board duties; rules. The State Library Board shall be the 
policy-making body for the State Library. The State Library Board shall: 

      (1) Formulate general policies for the State Library to provide the framework for library 
operations; 

      (2) Adopt rules to carry out the purposes for which the State Library is established or for any 
other purpose authorized by law; 

      (3) In consultation with the Oregon Library Association, the Oregon Heritage Commission 
and other related organizations, adopt long-range strategic plans for the continued improvement 
and development of the State Library and develop key performance measures to track progress; 

      (4) Review and approve budget requests for the State Library that align with the board’s long-
range plans; 

      (5) Develop, adopt and modify a technology plan, including long-range expenditures, for the 
purchase of subscriptions statewide, for reference-based databases, digitization of records for 
public libraries and integration of services provided by the State Library; 

      (6) Conduct certifications of state agency libraries or library services under ORS 357.029; 

      (7) Review and monitor the State Library and the State Library’s work in the State Reference 
Coordinating Council established under ORS 357.900; 

      (8) Administer the State Library Donation Fund for the benefit of the State Library, except that 
every gift, devise or bequest for a specific purpose shall be administered according to its terms; 
and 

      (9) Report to the Legislative Assembly in January of each odd-numbered year on the State 
Library’s efforts to: 

      (a) Achieve the statutory mission and programmatic outcomes of the State Library; 

      (b) Implement initiatives and improvements to interagency coordination; 

      (c) Implement initiatives and improvements to the electronic delivery of government 
publications and services; 

      (d) Implement initiatives and improvements to State Library reference services to state 
agencies; 

      (e) Enter into public, nonprofit and private partnerships and report the number of the 
partnerships entered into by the State Library; and 

      (f) Reduce duplication in state agency services and costs related to the mission of the State 
Library. [2015 c.328 §7] 

  

29



      357.028 Rules governing State Library resources; public and state agency access. The 
State Library Board shall adopt rules: 

      (1) Defining reasonable public access to the State Library and its resources and materials. 

      (2) Defining State Library resources, including, but not limited to, print, electronic, 
subscription and reference services. 

      (3) Establishing processes and procedures related to state agency use of State Library 
resources, as defined in rules adopted under subsection (2) of this section. The rules shall provide 
that the State Library shall fulfill only state agency requests for resources or services that pertain 
to the conduct of state business. [2015 c.328 §8] 

  

      357.029 Certification of state agency library or library service separately maintained 
from State Library; rules; report to legislature. (1) The State Library shall certify each 
biennium any state agency library or library service that is maintained separate from the State 
Library or that is proposed to be maintained separate from the State Library. 

      (2) The State Library Board shall adopt rules relating to the certification process and review 
criteria. 

      (3) The State Library Board shall report to the Legislative Assembly each January of an odd-
numbered year on the list of state agency libraries or library services that fail to be certified or 
recertified by the State Library under this section. [2015 c.328 §19] 

  

      357.030 [Amended by 1953 c.300 §5; repealed by 1961 c.251 §1 (357.031 enacted in lieu of 
357.030)] 

  

      357.031 Authority of State Library Board. The State Library Board may: 

      (1) Enter into contracts with any person or governmental entity: 

      (a) To provide, extend, improve or coordinate library services; or 

      (b) To demonstrate appropriate programs of library services. 

      (2) Enter into library agreements pursuant to Article V of the Interstate Library Compact (ORS 
357.340). 

      (3) Establish, equip and maintain regional library service centers of the State Library outside 
the City of Salem when the library needs of the state will be better served. [1961 c.251 §2 
(enacted in lieu of 357.030); 1965 c.354 §6; 1973 c.439 §10; 1975 c.476 §9; 2015 c.328 §9] 

  

30



      357.035 Board as agency to apply for federal or private funds. Subject to the provisions of 
ORS 291.260 and 291.375, the State Library Board is designated as a state agency empowered to 
apply for federal or private funds and accept and enter into appropriate agreements for library 
purposes on behalf of the state or its political subdivisions or for any activity appropriate to the 
State Library on behalf of the state for the receipt of such funds from the federal government or its 
agencies or from any private source, and supervise the disbursement of such funds. [Formerly 
357.220; 2015 c.328 §10] 

  

      357.040 Authority of board over real and personal property. (1) The State Library Board 
may acquire control and dispose of any and all real and personal property given to or for the 
benefit of the State Library by private donors, whether the gifts of the property are made to the 
State Library or to the board or to the State of Oregon for the benefit of the library. 

      (2) The board may accept by assignment and hold mortgages upon real and personal property 
acquired by way of gift or arising out of transactions entered into in accord with the powers, duties 
and authority given to the board by this section and ORS 357.026 and 357.195. 

      (3) The board may institute, maintain and participate in suits, actions and other judicial 
proceedings in the name of the State of Oregon for the foreclosure of such mortgages or for the 
purpose of carrying into effect any and all of the powers, duties and authority now vested in or 
given to the board by this section. [Amended by 1975 c.476 §11; 1995 c.69 §11; 2015 c.328 §11] 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

31



 
 

Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council 
Recommendations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

32



 
Agenda Item 
Recommendation of the Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council 
 
Background and Summary 
The Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council met at the State Library on 
February 18, 2016 and adopted the following recommendation to the State Library 
Board. 
 
Approve Bylaws: 
Attachment A is the marked up version of the recommended changes to the Talking 
Books Advisory Council bylaws. Highlights of the recommended changes are: 

• Changing the name of the Board from OSL Board of Trustees to OSL 
Board 

• Changing the wording blind and physically handicapped to print 
disabled 

• New nomination and appointment process 
 
Approve Endowment Fund Policy: 
The Endowment Fund Taskforce met on February 17th and recommendations were 
made to the Talking Books Advisory Council regarding the Endowment Fund 
Policy. Attachment B is the marked up version of the endowment Fund Policy.   
Highlights of the recommendations are: 

• All new memorial and commemorative gifts that are undesignated will 
be deposited in the expendable fund 

• The interest only from the Endowment fund may be spent 
• Annual review of the Endowment Fund investments  

 
 
Recommendations of the State Librarian 
The State Librarian supports the recommendations of the Talking Book and Braille 
Library Advisory Council.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



Attachment A 
 
Oregon State Library 
OREGON TALKING BOOK AND BRAILLE LIBRARY ADVISORY 
COUNCIL BYLAWS 
 
ARTICLE  I Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council  
The name of this group is the Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library 
Advisory Council of the Oregon State Library, which hereafter shall be 
referred to as the Council and the Library. 
 
ARTICLE  II    Purpose 
The purpose of this Council is to act as an advisory group to the Oregon 
State Library Board of Trustees (hereafter referred to as the OSL Board).  
The Council will receive and consider requests of policy change and funding 
prior to final decisions by the OSL Board.  The Council may also, when 
appropriate, make recommendations to the National Library Service for the 
Blind and Physically Handicapped of the Library of Congress on practices, 
policies, and goals of library services to persons who are print disabled.  The 
Council shall further serve as an advocate for the promotion and further 
development of library services for all blind and physically disabled 
individuals Oregonians with print disabilities.   
 
ARTICLE  III    Members 
SECTION 1.  Membership on this Council shall be representative of those 
organizations and individuals having a direct interest in library services to 
persons who are blind and/or physically print disabled. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council shall consist of no less than seven members and 
no more than eleven voting members.  At least 60% of the Council members 
must be consumers of the Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library (five or 
more of seven, six or more of nine, seven or more of eleven).  The number 
of voting members on the Council shall remain an odd number, so that 
differences in opinion can be settled by a vote.  There will be two types of 
voting members: those that represent an Oregon group or organization, who 
are appointed from within their organization to serve on the Council; and 
members-at-large, who are elected appointed by the process described in 
these bylaws.  Factors to be considered during the selection/election 
nomination and appointment of new members-at-large will be geographic 
representation, age, service utilization use, and other pertinent patron 
characteristics.  There will be three non-voting members of the Council: two 
Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library staff members, and the State 
Librarian or designated representative. 

34



 
 
SECTION 3.  Terms: 
A.  Members of the Council shall serve four year terms.  Staggered terms 
shall be established and maintained so that one third of the terms expire in 
successive years. 
 
B.  Terms for all members-at-large shall begin at the first meeting of the 
calendar year after their appointment; 
 
C.  Terms for all members representing a group or organization shall begin 
at the first meeting after appointment; 
 
D.  No member shall be appointed to more than two consecutive terms; 
former council members will be eligible for re-nomination to serve on the 
council after a break of one year; representatives from state agencies are 
not subject to term limits;  
 
E.  A member who has served more than half a term is considered to have 
served a full term.  A member who has served a partial term will be 
replaced by another person to finish the term, regardless of time 
remaining in the term. 
 
SECTION 4.  Members of the Council may include individuals from the 
following areas: 
A. Appointed Members representing groups or organizations (voting), up to 
one each from groups or organizations such as including (but not limited 
to): American Council of the Blind of Oregon, National Federation of the 
Blind, the Commission for the Blind, the Oregon Disabilities Commission, 
American Association of Retired Persons, and the Dyslexic Association; or 
other constituent groups. 
 
B.  Elected members Members-at-large (voting), such as: one public 
librarian-at-large; two senior citizen user-at-large; one user-at-large; one 
parent of a minor user to be the parent-at-large; one school teacher or 
resource room teacher to be the teacher-at-large; one disabled student 
services office person to be the Disabled Student Services (DSS) person-at-
large; one Technology Access for Life Needs (TALN) or technical person to 
be the technical person-at-large; 
 
C.  Non voting members will include: Oregon Talking Book and Braille 
Library liaison; State Librarian and library staff.   
 

35



SECTION 5.  Each member who is present shall have one vote. 
 
SECTION 6.  Attendance: 
A.  Each Council member, appointed or elected at large,  is expected to 
attend all meetings;  
 
B.  After two consecutive unexcused absences, the seat shall be considered 
vacant. Unexcused absence is defined as missing a meeting without 
notifying the State Library before the meeting begins; 
 
C.  If the State Library is notified before a meeting, any member may, as 
needed, send a substitute to a Council meeting.  Substitutes may not vote.  
Substitutes may not attend more than four Council meetings during the 
member's four-year term.  
 
SECTION 7.  Selection of appointed members:   
The president, chair, or head (leader) of each agency, group, or organization 
will be contacted directly by the State Library.  The leader of the group will 
submit the name of one person who will attend the Council meetings as a 
voting member. If the appointed person is no longer able to attend the 
Council meetings, s/he must notify the State Library. The State Library will 
notify the group’s leader, who may select another person.  
 
SECTION 8.  Nomination of members at-large: 
A.  Every two years, nominations for vacant member at-large positions 
will be solicited from as many state-wide sources as possible; 
 
B.  Notices soliciting nominations for the Council may be publicized in the 
library's newsletter and/or other area-wide publications directed toward 
individuals who are blind and/or physically disabled Oregonians who are 
print disabled, to assure public knowledge of the available seats on the 
Council;  
 
C.  The Nominating Committee will prepare a slate of nominees with a 
minimum of one candidate for each vacancy. 
 
D.  C.  Nominations will include a short statement of interest from the 
nominee when submitted; 
 
D.  The State Librarian in consultation with the Talking Book and 
Braille Library Program Manager will select one candidate for each 
position to recommend to the Board for appointment to the Council.  
 

36



SECTION 9.  Election Appointment of members at-large: 
A.  Each OSL Board of Trustee member will be sent a slate of nominees 
from the Nominating Committee the list of candidates from the State 
Librarian and Talking Book and Braille Library Program Manager 
fourteen days prior to the final Board meeting of the calendar year; 
 
B.  At the final Board meeting of the calendar year the Nominating 
Committee will present the slate of nominees (and the short biographies) for 
the election of the members-at-large. 
 
C.  Nominations shall also be accepted from the floor at the time of the 
election; 
 
D.  Members-at-large shall be elected by a majority vote of all trustees 
present and voting. 
 
B.  Candidates will be approved for appointment by a majority vote of 
all Board members present and voting. 
 
SECTION 10.  No organization with an appointed member or group 
represented by an at-large member is guaranteed a seat on the Council if it 
is vacated due to unexcused absences. Since there are fewer members of 
the Council than are defined above as possible seats, if a vacancy occurs 
due to unexcused absences, the State Library may choose from a different 
source (of appointed or at-large individuals) to fill that seat for the remainder 
of that four-year term. A vacancy on the Council by any member (appointed 
or at-large) shall be filled by an appointment at the next Board meeting, 
selecting from the nominees of the previous recruitment, or by the Board 
directing the State Library to contact a group's leader to ask for a new 
member to be appointed. 
 
ARTICLE  IV    Officers 
SECTION 1.  The Council shall elect a Chair and a Vice Chair. 
 
SECTION 2.  Terms: 
A. The term of office for both Chair and Vice Chair shall run two years, from 
the first meeting of the calendar year to the first meeting of the calendar 
year two years hence; 
 
B.  The Chair and Vice Chair may serve no more than three consecutive 
terms in the same office; 
 

37



C.  An officer who has served more than half a term (one year) in the office 
is considered to have served a full term. 
 
SECTION 3.  Nomination and election of officers: 
A. At the Council's first meeting of the calendar year the election of officers 
will be an agenda item; 
 
B.  The Nominations Committee Talking Book and Braille Library 
Program Manager will solicit nominations from the floor; all council 
members eligible to vote are eligible to be nominated; 
 
C.  There must be a minimum of one candidate for each position;  
 
D.  Each candidate will make a short statement to the Council indicating 
their experience, leadership skills, and interest in the position for which they 
are a nominee; 
 
E.  Officers shall be elected by majority vote of all Council members present 
and voting at that meeting. 
 
SECTION 4.  Duties of the officers: 
A. The officers shall perform the duties prescribed by these bylaws and by 
the parliamentary authority adopted by the Council; 
 
B.  The Chair shall preside at all meetings; coordinate with the State Library 
to set agendas; and appoint committees; 
 
C.  The Vice Chair will keep the calendar of the Council, including upcoming 
dates of nominations, elections, etc.  Upon the absence of the 
Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair; 
 
D. The State Library shall be responsible for assigning the duty of minute-
taking; notifying members of meetings and special meetings; keeping 
records including Council members names, terms, phone numbers, 
addresses, and preferred format; assisting the Chair in setting the agenda; 
distributing the agenda and minutes from prior meetings; reporting to the 
Council excused and unexcused absences; notifying nominees for the 
Council that they have or have not gained a seat on the Council; approving 
the language of Council recommendations before submission to the Board, 
and assisting with other duties as requested by the Chair. 
 
SECTION 5. The Chair need not be an Oregon Talking Book and Braille 
Library user. 

38



 
SECTION 6. Vacancies: 
A.  A vacancy in the office of the Chair is filled immediately by the Vice 
Chair. A new Vice Chair shall be elected at the next regular meeting of the 
Council; 
 
B.  A vacancy in the office of the Vice Chair shall be filled by election at the 
next regular meeting of the Council.  
 
ARTICLE V Meetings 
SECTION 1.  Regular meetings of the Council shall be held at least four 
times each calendar year. 
 
SECTION 2.  All meetings shall be held in a location that has facilities 
accessible to all persons, including those who have a mobility impairment. 
 
SECTION 3.  The first meeting of each calendar year shall be held in Salem.  
The location of all other meetings shall be determined by the members of 
the Council.  Meetings will usually be held in Salem at the Oregon State 
Library.  For Council members who are unable to attend in person, 
regular arrangements will be made for teleconferencing so members 
can be present and vote by phone. 
 
SECTION 4. Special meetings may be called by the Chair, or two officers, or 
at least three members of the Council, provided that all members are 
notified at least seven days in advance of the special meeting.  
 
SECTION 5.  The agenda for each regular meeting shall be distributed to 
each member by the State Library in an appropriate format, no less than 
fourteen days prior to the meeting.  Format may be Braille, tape audio, print, 
large print, on disc in ASCII format, or e-mail.  Each council member is 
responsible for notifying the State Library of their preferred format. 
 
SECTION 6. Fifty percent plus one member shall constitute a quorum for the 
purpose of conducting business.  Teleconference members are counted as 
part of the quorum.   Non-voting members will not be included in the quorum 
count.  Once a quorum is established, the meeting remains official until 
adjournment. 
 
SECTION 7.  All meetings are open to anyone who wishes to observe. 
Observers may comment with prior approval of the Chair. 
 
 

39



ARTICLE  VI    Committees 
SECTION 1.  The Chair will appoint a Bylaws Committee and the 
Nominating Committee as the standing committees of the Council on an ad 
hoc basis. These committee members will serve a 2-year term. 
 
A. The Bylaws Committee shall have at least two members.  It will consider 
proposed amendments to the Council’s bylaws.  The Bylaws Committee will 
have the duty of presenting any proposed amendments to the Council for 
deliberation and action;  
 
B.  The Nominating Committee shall have at least three members.  It will 
solicit nominees, as required, from the general public to fill vacancies on the 
Council, or from Council members to fill vacancies among the officers of the 
Council; solicit brief statements from the nominees; compile lists of 
nominees names and statements for submission to the Board or Council; 
and present slates of nominees to the Board or to the Council.   
 
SECTION 2.  Each committee member is expected to participate in all 
scheduled committee meetings.  A person will vacate the position 
following two unexcused absences. 
 
SECTION 3.  Special committees may be appointed by the Chair as 
needed. 
 
SECTION 4.  The Chair shall be an ex officio member of all standing and 
special committees except the Nominating Committee of the Bylaws 
Committee and all special committees. 
 
ARTICLE  VII    Parliamentary Authority 
The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order, 
Revised, shall govern the Committee in all cases to which they are 
applicable, and which they are not inconsistent with these by laws and any 
special rules of order the Committee may adopt. 
 
ARTICLE  VIII    Amendment to the Bylaws 
These bylaws may be amended at any meeting by a two-thirds vote of the 
Council members present and voting, provided the proposed amendment(s) 
have been filed with the Bylaws Committee and distributed to all members, 
in the appropriate format, at least thirty days in advance of the meeting.  All 
amendments to the bylaws must receive final approval by the OSL Board. 
 
 
 

40



Adopted October 21, 1994 
Revised & Adopted October 14, 1996 
Revised & Adopted March 1, 2001 
Revised & Adopted November 16, 2006 
Revised & Adopted June 13, 2008 
Revised December 22, 2014 
Revised June 15, 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



Attachment B 
 

Oregon State Library 
Policy 

 
Endowment Fund for the Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library 

 
Approved by: 
 

Date: 

 
 
Policy Statement:  The purpose of this policy is to set expectations and provide 
guidance for the State Library Board and staff on the administration and use of the 
Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library Endowment Fund.  
 
Authority:  ORS 357.195 and ORS 357.026 
 
Applicability:  State Library Board, staff, volunteers, and donors. 
 
Attachments:  None 
 
Definitions:   
Endowment Fund: a depository of gift(s) of money or property to an institution for a 
specific purpose, especially one in which the principal is kept intact indefinitely and only 
use the interest income from that principal is used.   
 
Policy: 
 
Within the State Library’s Donation Fund where TBABS Talking Books donations 
are deposited, the Talking Book and Braille Library Endowment Fund is created to 
function as an endowment fund for donor-designated gifts and undesignated 
bequests, trusts, and annuities memorial and commemorative gifts donated to the 
Oregon Talking Book and Braille Services Library.  Solicited or unsolicited gifts and 
memorial / honoraria gifts will be placed in the Talking Books Expendable Fund.  
The purpose of the Talking Book and Braille Library Endowment Fund is to assure a 
long, strong future for TBABS Talking Books by building an additional source of 
income that will supplement the federal contributions, the state general fund, and 
other donations in funding TBABS to achieve its service objectives and the goals in 
any current TBABS Long Range Plan the mission of the State Library in service of 
Talking Books. 
 
All donor-designated gifts and undesignated bequests, trusts, and annuities and 
memorial and commemorative gifts donated to TBABS Talking Books, that is, 
those donations that were unanticipated in the TBABS Talking Books fund 
development budget for a given fiscal year, and have no donor-initiated 

42



restrictions, shall be placed into this fund.  These donations become part of the 
Endowment Fund’s principal and may not be spent directly.  Only the interest 
that is earned from investing the principal of the Endowment Fund may be spent 
by Talking Books.    
 
TBABS Talking Books literature and correspondence with donors will explain that 
the donor can restrict any and all gifts, and that undesignated bequests and other 
planned gifts will be placed in this fund. 
 
The Talking Books Advisory Council and the State Library Board will review the 
Endowment Fund investments annually, including a determination of the 
appropriate percentage of newly-donated funds from the previous year to be 
split between the low-interest and intermediate investment funds with the State 
Treasurer’s Office. 
 
The State Library Board has the discretion to waive or amend this policy for 
particular gifts, bequests, etc.  To amend the policy for any reason a 
recommendation approved by a majority of the Advisory Council will be sent to 
the Board.  Approval by a majority of the Board will cause the policy to be 
amended. 
 
Approved by State Library Board of Trustees 
8/19/1997 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



Statesman Journal, February 28, 2016 

http://www.statesmanjournal.com/story/news/2016/02/28/audio-books-available-
loan/81006114/ 

Audio books available for loan 
Cindy Ulshafer, Special to the Statesman Journal 5:01 a.m. PST February 28, 2016 

 

Residents and community members listen to Joel Henderson’s presentation of the State of Oregon’s program Talking 
Books at Woodland Residential Inn on February 25.(Photo: Cindy Ulshafer / Special to the Statesman Journal) 

The activity room was packed with residents and community visitors at Woodland Residential 
Inn, a senior living facility, when Joel Henderson made his presentation on February 25 about free 
audio books. He emphasized the “free” part because, as he explained, there truly is no charge. 

The Talking Books and Braille Library loans audio books to qualified Oregonians through the 
State of Oregon Library. Since 1932, the state collection has been available to state employees, 
public institutions, and the public who qualify. Not only the legally blind meet the criteria but 
anyone who has had traumatic brain injury, stroke, or any other physically disabling condition that 
does not allow them to hold or read a printed book for an extended amount of time. Henderson 
said books can, among other things, stimulate the mind, broaden horizons, and bring comfort to 
those who suffer from anxiety. 

The state-funded program is also supported by donations and the National Library Service for the 
Blind and Physically Handicapped, a part of the Library of Congress. “Our wonderful (state) 
Congress allows us an exemption from copyright law as long as we record (the books) ourselves,” 
Henderson said, and the voices are of semiprofessionals and volunteers. 

 

Joel Henderson shows a digital player and cartridge during his presentation of the State of Oregon’s program Talking 
Books at Woodland Residential Inn on February 25. (Photo: Cindy Ulshafer / Special to the Statesman Journal) 

45



The system is completely digital. Henderson said each book is recorded on a cartridge—“actually 
a flash drive in a big plastic casing”—which is easily inserted into the free digital player that is 
mailed to a new member. The portable player can be borrowed with no time limit and, with no 
moving parts, it is virtually indestructible. The cartridges also come via mail and are easily 
returned in the same solid container in which they were delivered. Henderson stressed that the 
player and shipping case are designed for people with low manual dexterity. 

Resident Carl Jacobson, who is legally blind, is already using the service. He said that the digital 
player runs on rechargeable batteries that last up to 28 hours. He has opted to automatically 
receive a set number of books per month, all within his range of preferences noted in his 
application. The other choice is to select each book from a catalog. The most popular genres, 
among a multitude, range from westerns to romance, real-life adventure stories to classic sci-fi. 
No reference or academic titles are available. Recording lengths are from six to 40 hours, 
Henderson said. No limit is set on how many books can be borrowed (he suggested starting with 
four); the same title can be borrowed by many subscribers at the same time; and again yes, they’re 
all free for the asking. 

 

Community relations director Dawn Hull holds the hand of resident Sam Anderson as they listen to Joel Henderson’s 
presentation of the State of Oregon’s program Talking Books at Woodland Residential Inn on February 25. (Photo: 
Cindy Ulshafer / Special to the Statesman Journal) 

A candidate is asked to fill out an application with proof from a doctor, residence director, or any 
other authority knowledgeable of the person’s disability to read print. Woodland’s community 
relations director Dawn Hull, who hosted the event, said she would be happy to help anyone fill 
out an application and send it to the state agency, “and information is confidential and protected.” 

Visitor John Francis said years ago he had an account with Talking Books when there were about 
4,000 titles available. He and his wife, Caye Poe, were surprised to hear that now 80,000 audio 
books are accessible. Francis is vision-impaired, so Poe reads the local newspaper to him; he also 
listens to podcasts, so he was glad to learn that through the app BARD, the books are 
downloadable onto mobile devices. 

The senior facility hosts monthly informative talks, Hull said. Next up at 2 p.m.  March 24, staff 
from the Salem Police Department will discuss fraud prevention because, police officials say, "it’s 
so prevalent." The public is welcome. 

 
 
 
 

46



 
 

 
 

 
 

47



 

 
   Employee Participation by Agency Feb. 19, 2016 

 
Agency Percent Participation 

Library 33 
Boards and Commissions 25 
Higher Education 24 
Public Defenders 23 
Labor & Industries 21 
Housing and Community Services 19 
Legislative Agencies 19 
Secretary of State 19 
State Lands 17 
Education 16 
Environmental Quality 16 
Education 16 
Water Resources 16 
Public Employees Retirement 15 
Employment 13 
Public Utilities 13 
Real Estate 13 
Revenue 13 
Treasury 13 
Consumer & Business Services 12 
Veterans 11 
Fish and Wildlife 10 
Forestry 10 
Health 10 
Administrative Services 9 
Agriculture 9 
Human Services 9 
Justice 9 
Economic Development 8 
Geology & Minerals 8 
Governor 8 
Parks and Recreation 8 
Energy 7 
Judicial 7 
Land Conservation 7 
Liquor Control 7 
Transportation 7 
Youth Authority 5 
Lottery 5 
Public Safety SST 5 
Corrections 4 
Military 2 

48



 
 

Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49



From: Janet Weber  
Sent: Friday, December 18, 2015 2:15 PM 
To: Robby Pietz  
Subject: Re: Scanned document from the State Library 

Robert, 

Thank you so much!  This is absolutely incredible that this was scanned.  I am extremely 
appreciative of this.  Please tell the other staff involved thank you for me! 

Janet 

 

From: Pete Schreiner  
Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 10:41 AM 
To: Jessica Rondema 
Subject: Re: [Libs-Or] Oregon State Library Jobline is Now a Blog 
 
Hi Ms. Rondema, 
 
Thank you for your work maintaining and distributing the Jobline; and congrats on the 
new format. The blog looks good and it's a very cool update to a useful resource. 
 
Happy new year, 
 
Pete Schreiner 
Interim Assistant Archivist, Lewis & Clark College.  
 
 
From: NEWTON Robert J * DCBS  
Sent: Wednesday, January 06, 2016 4:58 PM 
To: Jerry Curry 
Subject: RE: Oregon State Library - Registration Information 
 
Jerry, 
 
Yes, I was sent the information. However, I want you to know how much I appreciate your follow 
up...that is the kind of customer service I personally like to deliver and I'm very impressed with 
the level of customer service you have shown...great follow up! 
 
Most respectfully, 
Robert 
 
Robert J. Newton, MBA | Deputy Administrator 
 
“We make people successful” 
Department of Consumer & Business Services 
 
 

50



From: Stephenson, Garry Owen  
Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2016 3:38 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Subject: Re: Scanned document 
 
MaryKay, 
 
Thank your staff for the very speedy response. The scan quality is great! 
This is for a project that includes OSU, PSU, and the Lazar Foundation. The report I 
requested is crucial for the literature search and the State Library is the only documented 
source. It saved one of the faculty from searching through hundreds of file cabinets in the 
basement of the OSU Department of Applied Economics (without a guarantee of success). 
Not a good use of her time.  
Thank you. 
 
Garry  
 
Garry Stephenson 
Professor 
Director, Center for Small Farms & Community Food Systems 
Oregon State University 
http://smallfarms.oregonstate.edu 
 
 
Sent: Thursday, January 21, 2016 4:33 PM 
To: State Library  Help 
Subject: RE: Registration for State Library Services Completed 
 
Thanks.  I rely on your clips to keep an eye out for issues that might impact the state's credit 
rating and are of importance to the investors in our State bonds. 
 
        (Patron name removed) 
        Oregon State Treasury 
            
 
From: Sarah Cunningham  
Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2016 11:51 AM 
To: Margie Harrison   
Subject: kudos from patron 
 
A comment from a public patron during a LiveHelp chat on Monday (January 25, 2016): 
 
(11:51 AM) Visitor: that's super helpful, thank you so much!!! I think that should be all I 
need. Have a wonderful week.  
(11:52 AM) Visitor: I am amazed by your efficiency!!!!! 
 
Sarah M. Cunningham 
Assistant Cataloger 
Oregon State Library 
 
 

51

http://smallfarms.oregonstate.edu/


 
 
 
From: Sue Ludington  
Sent: Thursday, February 11, 2016 9:41 AM 
To: Darci Hanning  
Subject: RE: Map of OR public libraries? 
 
Oh, Darci, how I love all you folks at the State Library!  I’m so grateful to have colleagues that 
are endlessly supportive and don’t mind entertaining curious questions like mine. 
 
I’ve started using Heather’s map this morning, and it’s worked flawlessly so far! I’ll be thanking 
her via Libs-Or shortly. [Heather Pitts from Government Services –ED] 
 
I suppose the only thing I think is especially nice about the non-Fusion Google map the county 
law libraries did is that, when you click a location, the sidebar/window that opens includes a live 
hyperlink to the location’s website (or closest thing to it). With the Fusion map, yes, you get the 
URL to the library’s website -- but it’s not a live link, so involves a couple more steps… 
 
Looking forward to seeing the directory’s map enhancement! Many thanks again. 
-Sue 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

52



 
 
From: Martín Blasco 
Sent: Thursday, February 11, 2016 10:40 AM 
To: Jessica Rondema  
Subject: RE: Jobline 
 
Hi Jessica: 
 
Thank you so much for your prompt response. It’s so great to have this service. Thank you for 
working on it. 
Have a good day, 
 
Martín 
 
 
From: FRAZIER Kevin * GOV  
Sent: Tuesday, February 16, 2016 1:34 PM 
To: Jerry Curry   
Subject: Thank You 
 
Hello Jerry, 
 
Thank you again for all of your assistance. 
 
The Governor very much appreciates how promptly the library has met her requests. 
 
She has finished the relevant portions of a number of books. Can I leave books ready to be returned with 
our front desk at 254 for pickup? 
 
Thanks, 
 
Kevin 
 
Kevin Frazier 
Executive Assistant 
Office of Governor Kate Brown 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



From: Hoffman, Jana  
Sent: Friday, February 26, 2016 11:36 AM 
To: Katie Anderson   
Subject: Free summer food program - Ledding Library 
 
Hi Katie.  Just wanted you to know that the Milwaukie Ledding Library has agreed to be a 
weekly free summer snack site this summer, partnering with the N. Clackamas Schools 
and the N. Clackamas Parks & Rec.  Thanks again for your email encouragement about 
the program; it made it seem possible for us to try it for the first time. 
-Jana 
 
Jana Hoffman 
Supervising Librarian 
City of Milwaukie 
Ledding Library  
 
 
From: Jennifer Maurer  
Sent: Tuesday, March 01, 2016 9:19 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary  
Subject: Yay, Talking Books! 
 
This Talking Books article in the Statesman Journal reminded me that last weekend my father-in-
law told me (again…) how much he’s enjoying the digital player from Talking Books. He’s 
amazed at how many books a cartridge will hold, and that you don’t have to flip it like he did with 
cassettes.  
 
http://www.statesmanjournal.com/story/news/2016/02/28/audio-books-available-loan/81006114/ 
 
Jen 
 
Jennifer Maurer 
School Library Consultant 
Oregon State Library 
 
 
From: Sara Belousek  
Sent: Tuesday, March 01, 2016 11:41 AM 
To: allGovernmentServices   
Subject: Fan-dang-tastic! 
 
Patron feedback with a little backstory… 
 
Several years ago an Archives patron suggested the addition of A History of Public Health in 
Oregon, by Jack Smolensky to the OSL collection, but at that time it wasn’t available for purchase 
and we didn’t have permission to duplicate it.  Fast forward a few years to a similar request from 
the Public Health Division reiterating the value of this particular work.  The thesis originated from 
U of O and they were able to point me toward a possible address for the author.  Mr. Smolensky 
called & sent a follow-up letter giving us permission to add his work to our collection and he was 
really quite thrilled that we were doing so. 

55

http://www.statesmanjournal.com/story/news/2016/02/28/audio-books-available-loan/81006114/


 
Thank you Rachel for slogging through 400+ pages of digitization and you’ll note the thanks from 
our patron below. 
 
“Fan-dang-tastic! 
 
Bless you for all your effort on this! 
 
Gratefully, 
-Paul.” (Cieslak) 
 
Sara Belousek 
Document Delivery Coordinator 
Oregon State Library 
 
 
From: Katie Anderson  
Sent: Monday, March 07, 2016 12:55 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary  
Cc: BITTEL Jennifer  
Subject: Thanks for participating in the Food Drive! 
 
Thank you for participating in the 2016 Governor’s State Employees Food Drive! 
 
Together we donated 177 pounds of food and $1,343.55 for the Oregon Food Bank. 
 

 
 

Katie Anderson, Youth Services Consultant  
Library Support and Development Services  

Oregon State Library, 250 Winter St. NE, Salem, OR 97301 
 
 
From: TATE Ben * DAS 
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 1:42 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   
Subject: RE: Safari is great! 
 
I’m there!  I read a great article on IT strategy yesterday and used it in a meeting today 
with the Higher Education Coordinating Commission.  I’m sending out the link to HECC 
(they seemed very excited about it!). 
 
Ben Tate 
Strategic Technology Officer - Education 
Office of State CIO 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Wednesday, March 9, 2016 1:40 PM 

56

http://www.oregon.gov/osl/LD/pages/index.aspx


To: TATE Ben * DAS   
Subject: RE: Safari is great! 
 
That is what I was hoping you would become! 
 

MaryKay Dahlgreen 
Oregon State Librarian 

 
 
From: TATE Ben * DAS  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 1:10 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   
Subject: RE: Safari is great! 
 
I should have a new title – Safari Evangelist. 
 
Ben Tate 
Strategic Technology Officer - Education 
Office of State CIO 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Wednesday, March 9, 2016 10:58 AM 
To: TATE Ben * DAS   
Subject: RE: Safari is great! 
 
Glad you like it  
 

MaryKay Dahlgreen 
Oregon State Librarian 

 
From: TATE Ben * DAS  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 8:43 AM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   
Subject: Safari is great! 
 
MaryKay, 
 
Just wanted to say that I signed up for Safari late last week and have been loving it!  I passed it on to my 
counterparts here and will let my other agencies know about it as well.  It’s a fantastic resource! 
 
Ben Tate 
Strategic Technology Officer - Education 
Office of State CIO 
 
From: TATE Ben * DAS  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 8:43 AM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   
Subject: Safari is great! 
 
MaryKay, 
 
Just wanted to say that I signed up for Safari late last week and have been loving it!  I passed it on to my 
counterparts here and will let my other agencies know about it as well.  It’s a fantastic resource! 
 

57



Ben Tate 
Strategic Technology Officer - Education 
Office of State CIO 
 
 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Monday, March 14, 2016 11:20 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
 
Congratulations, Meagan. We know you will make us proud. 
MaryKay 
 

MaryKay Dahlgreen 
Oregon State Librarian 

503-378-4367 
 
From: Elke Bruton  
Sent: Monday, March 14, 2016 10:25 AM 
To: allTalkingBooks   
Subject: Congratulations to Meagan! 
 
I just want to take a second to let you know that our very own Meagan Button has been 
accepted to the Master of Library and Information Science program at the University of 
Washington!  Admission to the program is competitive with the school only accepting 
about 50% of the hundreds of received applications.  Obviously Meagan’s qualifications 
and talent shined through because she will join the UW MLIS class of 2019 in the fall.  
Congratulations Meagan! 
 
 
   Elke H. Bruton, MLIS 
   Public Services Librarian 
   Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library 
   Oregon State Library 
 
 
 

58



 
 
 

From: Susan Westin  
Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2016 3:07 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary  
Subject: Dewey Salute to Tamara 
 
Greetings all – 
 

59



A Dewey Salute to Tamara for her efforts on the Answerland RFP.  RFP #DASPS-2106-16, 
Hosted Virtual Reference System, has been posted on ORPIN and is now available to the vendor 
community.  This has been a long and at times cumbersome project with a number of partners.   
Also a shout out to Darci for her efforts on this project.    
 
Thank you Tamara and Darci. 
 
Susan 
 
 
From: Susan Westin  
Sent: Thursday, March 24, 2016 10:14 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary   
Cc: JORGENSEN Vicki * DAS   
Subject: Kate Anderson 
 
Greetings all – 
 
I am pleased to announce that Kate Anderson has successfully completed her trial 
service for the State Library Specialist 1.   Please join me in congratulating Kate. 
 
Thank you 
Susan 
 
 
From: Jennifer Maurer  
Sent: Friday, March 25, 2016 4:03 PM 
To: Joel Henderson; AllStateLibrary  
Subject: RE: Thanks Dave and Jerry! 
 
Thanks for sharing that, Joel. The donation was a great way to pay it forward.  
 
Jen 
 
Jennifer Maurer 
School Library Consultant 
Library Support and Development Services 
Oregon State Library 
 
From: Joel Henderson  
Sent: Friday, March 25, 2016 2:52 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary   
Subject: Thanks Dave and Jerry! 
 
So funny Friday story: 
 
Talking Books recently received a donation through our online donation portal from a 
woman in Seattle.  When the donor isn’t a user of our library I usually call to see what the 
intent of the donation was (honorarium, memorial, etc), since currently there is no way for 
donors to indicate that when they’re making the donation.  Turns out the intent was to 
show appreciation for some reference help she had received from Dave and Jerry.  

60



Talking Books is just the only division here at the State Library that can receive 
donations, so he did what she could.  So kudos to Dave and Jerry for a job well done that 
benefitted the whole State Library!  Thanks! 
 
   Joel Henderson 
   Talking Books 
   Oregon State Library 
 
 
From: Jennifer McCormick  
Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 9:36 AM 
To: Katie Anderson; Katrina Sarson  
Subject: Re: Beverly Cleary DVDs and other items arrived 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
This is great news – thanks for the update! And, thank YOU for making this possible. I’m so happy the 
libraries are excited about the birthday package – and about celebrating Beverly Cleary. I think the 
package that OSL and OPB have put together is a wonderful tribute to Mrs. Cleary and will hopefully 
reach many families across the state. 
  
Thank you! 
Jennifer 
------------------------------------------------------ 
Jennifer McCormick 
Marketing Manager | OPB 
 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 1:21 PM 
To: Jennifer Maurer; AllStateLibrary  
Subject: RE: Last minute reminders: The State Library In-Service is tomorrow! 
 
Well said, Jen. I agree wholeheartedly and am very much looking forward to our time 
together tomorrow. 
MaryKay 
 
From: Jennifer Maurer  
Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 1:18 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary  
Subject: RE: Last minute reminders: The State Library In-Service is tomorrow! 
 
Thanks to everyone who planned this in-service for what looks to be a productive day 
and for the outstanding communication about the event. What a great example of 
excellent customer service! 
 
Jen 
 
Jennifer Maurer 
School Library Consultant 
Library Support and Development Services 
Oregon State Library 

61


	State Library
	State Library
	Oregon's budget process
	The budget process has three major phases
	Agency Request Budget
	Governor's Recommended Budget
	Legislatively Adopted Budget


	Statesman Journal, February 28, 2016
	http://www.statesmanjournal.com/story/news/2016/02/28/audio-books-available-loan/81006114/
	Audio books available for loan
	From: Janet Weber  Sent: Friday, December 18, 2015 2:15 PM To: Robby Pietz  Subject: Re: Scanned document from the State Library
	From: Pete Schreiner  Sent: Monday, January 04, 2016 10:41 AM To: Jessica Rondema Subject: Re: [Libs-Or] Oregon State Library Jobline is Now a Blog
	From: NEWTON Robert J * DCBS
	From: Stephenson, Garry Owen  Sent: Tuesday, January 12, 2016 3:38 PM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen  Subject: Re: Scanned document
	From: Sarah Cunningham  Sent: Thursday, January 28, 2016 11:51 AM To: Margie Harrison   Subject: kudos from patron
	From: Sue Ludington  Sent: Thursday, February 11, 2016 9:41 AM To: Darci Hanning  Subject: RE: Map of OR public libraries?
	From: FRAZIER Kevin * GOV  Sent: Tuesday, February 16, 2016 1:34 PM To: Jerry Curry   Subject: Thank You
	From: Hoffman, Jana  Sent: Friday, February 26, 2016 11:36 AM To: Katie Anderson   Subject: Free summer food program - Ledding Library
	From: TATE Ben * DAS Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 1:42 PM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   Subject: RE: Safari is great!
	From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  Sent: Wednesday, March 9, 2016 1:40 PM To: TATE Ben * DAS   Subject: RE: Safari is great!
	From: TATE Ben * DAS  Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 1:10 PM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   Subject: RE: Safari is great!
	From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  Sent: Wednesday, March 9, 2016 10:58 AM To: TATE Ben * DAS   Subject: RE: Safari is great!
	From: TATE Ben * DAS  Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 8:43 AM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   Subject: Safari is great!
	From: TATE Ben * DAS  Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 8:43 AM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   Subject: Safari is great!
	From: Elke Bruton  Sent: Monday, March 14, 2016 10:25 AM To: allTalkingBooks   Subject: Congratulations to Meagan!
	From: Susan Westin  Sent: Thursday, March 24, 2016 10:14 AM To: AllStateLibrary   Cc: JORGENSEN Vicki * DAS   Subject: Kate Anderson
	From: Joel Henderson  Sent: Friday, March 25, 2016 2:52 PM To: AllStateLibrary   Subject: Thanks Dave and Jerry!
	From: Jennifer McCormick  Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 9:36 AM To: Katie Anderson; Katrina Sarson  Subject: Re: Beverly Cleary DVDs and other items arrived
	From: Jennifer Maurer  Sent: Thursday, March 31, 2016 1:18 PM To: AllStateLibrary  Subject: RE: Last minute reminders: The State Library In-Service is tomorrow!



